AGENDA FOR
PORT OF ILLAHEE COMMISSION
Wednesday, October 9TH - 6:30PM
ZOOM MEETING #715 0997 5823 / Password: Illahee

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. CONSENT AGENDA
*1. Agenda
*2. The September 11th, 2024, Regular Meeting minutes
*3. The September 18th, 2024, Special Meeting minutes
*4. Pay Bills with check numbers 5234 through 5247 totaling $55,437.71

3. SIGNING OF DOCUMENTS
Determine when/how to have at least 2 Commissioners sign the documents

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

5. REPORTS/UNFINISHED BUSINESS
anoriceone *1._Grants/Waterfront Access Improvements
John Piccone’s Summary Update of Projects

AnoHall  *2._lllahee Store Project — Status
PLIA Remediations
a. SLR- Start date?
b. Daves Septic- status
*1. Electrical Bids
*c. Landscape brush clean-up — Discuss ordering a boundary survey

*3. Treasurer's Report as of September 30, 2024, General Fund$53,906.02 Investments $295,808.98
Good Property Management (GPM) Account $199 total: $349,914.00

Grant Status:

BFP RCO Total = $851,065.00 Amount of RCO paid $97,262.74 Remaining RCO Funds $753,802.26
ALEA RCO Total= $500,000.00 Amount of RCO paid $77,751.31 Remaining RCO Funds $422,248.69
RCFB RCO Total= $191,000.00 Amount of RCO paid Remaining RCO Funds

Last Month’s Report Below

3. Treasurer’s Report as of August 31, 2024, General Fund $94.068.80 Investments $294,871.12
Good Property Management (GPM) Account $199 total; $389,138.92

4. Reports
ao  a. Website

— Anything to report?

*Supporting correspondence attached



AGENDA FOR
PORT OF ILLAHEE COMMISSION
Wednesday, October 9TH - 6:30PM
ZOOM MEETING #715 0997 5823 / Password: Illahee

REPORTS/UNFINISHED BUSINESS- Continued

nai  b. Properties

5560 Ocean View Boulevard/Rental
- Anything to report

5500 lllahee Road /Rental
- Anything to report

5507 lllahee Road/lllahee Store Property
- Anything to report?

lllahee Road Lot
- Anything to report?

rwvet C. DOCK/Pier
— Anything to report?

ao d. Tire reef test clean-up rescheduled for October 19.2024

e. All three Commissioners will be Attending the Small Ports Seminar
October 24, 25, 2024, Lake Chelan

6. NEW BUSINESS
*1. 2025 Preliminary Budget for approval — Final Budget to be adopted at November meeting

2. Port credit cards ordered for Commissioner Rupert and Commissioner Hall

7. PUBLIC COMMENT
8. ADJOURN — Small Ports Seminar — October 24th & 25 — | ake Chelan

— Kitsap All Ports — October 28th@ 6:30PM at Port of Brownsville
— Regular Meeting — November 13t"@ 6:30PM — via Zoom

*Supporting correspondence attached



Port of lllahee
Minutes of Regular Meeting

September 11, 2024

Call to Order

The Regular Port of lllahee meeting was held virtually through the ZOOM app (meeting id# 71509975823 / Password:
lllahee). Notice of the virtual meeting was posted near the kiosk at the head of the pier and on the Port’s website —
portofillahee.com.

Commission Chairman James Aho called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. Also, in attendance were Commissioner Jeffrey
Rupert; Commissioner Eric Hall; Administrator Jennifer Olson; Roy Barton; Cathy Johnson; John Buesch and John Piccone.

Consent Agenda
The following consent agenda items were approved:

e The September 11th Meeting Agenda

e August 14th, 2024, Regular Meeting minutes

e August 27th, Special Meeting minutes

e Checks numbering 5222 through 5233 totaling $46,564.99 as outlined in the attached Voucher

(motion by Rupert; second by Hall; all in favor)

Signing of Documents

Commissioners plan to stop by the lllahee Store to sign documents on Friday, September 13, 2024.

REPORTS/UNFINISHED BUSINESS -

Waterfront Improvement Project

John Piccone’s with SoundWest Engineering & Associates updated the Commissioners on the status of the Port of Illahee’s
projects. Please see John’s report below:

Page 1



Waterfront Improvement Project

+ Project Manual Update

A review copy of the complete project manual was sent to all Commissioners on 8-10-24
for Port review and approval. My understanding is that we will be having a special
meeting next week Wednesday {9-18-24) to discuss any questions and potentially
approve proceeding with adwvertising and opening bids if reviews are complete.

During the next week | will also be reviewing the manual once more in the event | see
any very minor edits or format errors.

All Commissioners are urged to take as much time as necessary to review the manual;
there is a lot there and you may wish to have the Port's legal counsel review as well
since this is new to the Port. In terms of overall construction progress and completion
of the work | don't anticipate this review period will have any meaningful impact on
completion of the project due to wet season constraints and permissible in-water work
windows.

+ Summary of Bidding Proceedure

There are numerous required procedures for a public port entity when seeking bids on a
project of this size. Most everything is well laid out and can be reviewed in Part 1 of the
bid manual. A few important highlights to summarize are as follows:

Please do not share or publicly distribute the review manual or the final manual that
goes out to bid. This is important to ensure all potential bidders receive the same
information as well as any addenda updates as the bid period proceeds. The ONLY thing
that can be shared (after the first advertisement goes out) is the advertisement page of
the manual. Likewise, be cautious in your discussions and what you say about the
project, finances, etc. during meetings and when talking with othars; while I'm not
aware of any specific regulation in this regard just be aware of the information you put
out and how it might affect the bid results and/or how a Contractor might choose to
proceed developing their bid strategy.

All bidders will request a copy of the manual and at that time they will be placed on the
plan holders list. We maintain this list of contacts for the purpose of communicating the
same information to all potential bidders. Soundwest will administer the plan holders
list and distribution of bid manuals to all interested parties according to standard
practice for Port projects like this one.

R e ]
SO«WS T Page 1 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 2



o Currently, the first advertisement is schaduled on September 19, then again on Sept. 26
and Oct. 2, There will be a mandatory pre-bid meeting on Oct. 3", where all
interested plan holders meet on site to inspect the site and ask guestions; this meeting
may only be attended by registered plan holders {no members of the public, vendors,
etc.). The entire residential house will need to be available for inspection on this day
and I'll work with Jim to arrange that. Then, the public bid opening is currently
scheduled for Oct. 16. These dates can always be adjusted if needed for any reason
{which can even be done by addenda after the first advertisement). We will advertise in
the Kitsap Sun as required and in the DJC; it's been my experience that most all bidders
will become aware of the project through the DIC. | will work with Jenny on how the
Port wishes to make payment for the advertisements.

s Bid Opening

©»  The bid opening will be attended by Jim and | {it is not typically a Commission or public
meeting). At the appointed time we will receive all bids and open them in front of each
contractor who submitted a bid. Although the “apparent low bidder” will be
announced, no official award of the project will take place at the bid opening.

¢ Leading up to Award of the Project

o As we've discussed on several occasions, the bids are expected to be higher than
originally estimated when we submitted grants due to inflation during the numerous
delays. Once bids are opened the Port will want to schedule a special meeting, likely
with executive session, and discuss available budget and bid price. The bid manual
clearly states that award of the project is contingent on the Ports post-bid evaluation of
funding. This funding evaluation should happen as quickly as possible after the bid
opening.

o Additionally, prior to official award, Jim and | will hold a pre-award meeting with the
apparent low bidder for the purpose of reviewing the bid in detail and discussing the
Contractors planned approach to Construction as well as numerous contingency related
items. As we've also discussed in the past, there are several unknowns associated with
the work that may impact final construction cost and although we will not have these
items determined during the pre-award meeting, | do believe it’s beneficial to the Port
and Contractor to discuss some of these items.

o After funding is evaluated and all pre-award discussion meets the Ports satisfaction, we
will issue a notice of award and the Contractor will proceed to submit the various bonds
and paperwork necessary to execute the construction contract.

b
SOWST Page 2 of ¥

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 3



« For Guidance As You Review the Project Manual:

= Part1 - Bidding Requirements
Port I focuses on the numerous required forms and information the contractor must
submit along with their bid price for the work. The majority of these items are reguired
by state law for public agencies bidding wark. This part of the bid manua! includes the
actual proposal sheets where the contractors will list their pricing for each wark
component as well as numerous other items that will also be submitted at the time of
bid opening.

= Advertisement for Bids

=  Bidder's Checklist

=  Proposal

»  Reguired Proposal Forms

= Mon-Collusion Declaration

=  Bid Deposit

= Statement of Proposed Subcontractors

= Contractor Certification Wage Law Compliance — Responsibility Criteria

= Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Criteria The supplemental hidder
responsibility section includes several poges of reguirements the contractor must
submit to demonstrate they are well guaiified for the work. Procedures for
rejecting the low bid contractor based on inodequote qualifications is prescribed
by state law and this section serves to increase the Ports decision making ability
in this regard.

o Part 2 — Contract Forms

Part 2 includes all the necessary controct forms for execution once the project is
owarded to the successful bidder. The primary contract for construction is only o couple

poges but it clorifies thot oll the components of the bid manuol, including oll referenced
manuals, also comprise the contract for construction.

= Contract for Construction

= Reguired Contract Forms

=  Payment Bond

»  Performance Bond

= Selection of Retainage Option

= Prevailing Wage Reguirements

 Part 3 — Special Conditions of the Contract

Part 3 includes numerous provisions and reguirements for completing the work that are
specific to this project. It includes such items as communication protocols, project
related contacts, contractors’ responsibilities related to regulatory compliance, what
submittols are required before performing the work, certain surveying and utility locote
reguirements, hours and days work can be done and how bod weather days will be

U SR S S e e ]
Sows T Papge 3 of ¥

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 4



accounted for, construction testing, etc. This section also includes the very important
section on how the work will be measured and paid for relative to the bid price received
in the proposal.

> Part 4 — Technical Specifications
Technical specifications are exactly what they sound like; all the very specific details
related to materiols ond execution necessary for the installotion of each item. On this
project we will have two types of technicel specifications; “performance specifications”
where we only dictate the performance-based outcome of the work item, ond
“prescriptive specifications” where we detoil more exactly what moterial ro use gnd how
it will be installed and tested. For example, on this praject the contractor will have the
latitude to shop around for different types of retaining wall blocks that meet basic
guidelines (performance) but the type of aspholt will be exoctly specified {prescriptive).

© Part5— Amendments to the Standard Specifications
In addition to the provisions ond specifications of part 3 and 4; port 5 incorporates by
reference the WSDOT standard specifications for municipal work. Thisis o
comprehensive document in and of itself ond we incorporate it by reference to prevent
having to reiterate many of the more standard specifications that generally apply to all
projects of this type. However, it is sometimes necessary to make minor amendments to
these so thot they apply to the Port of illahee in this case instead of WSDOT. The
majority of those amendments are actually made by WSDOT periodically as o courtesy to
Washington State municipolities ond public agencies.

¢ Part 6 — Drawings
The drawings ore exactiy what you'd expect and are either included in o single bound
document with the rest of the menuo! or bound separately and included by reference.

= Part7 - Appendices {Other Reference Documents Available by Request)
The appendix is alsa o very important port of the bid manual as it includes such items as
the project specific permits and various reports {like the contaminated material
management plan the Commissioners outhorized SLR to complete). By incorporating
these items into the oppendix, the information becomes part of the bid manual, and the
contractor is responsible for being award of the informuation chead of submitting bids.

= Appendix A: Miscellaneous Forms & Information related to the Work
= Appendix B: Special Reports
= Appendix C: Permits Obtained by the Port

R S ———
SOMST Page 4 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 5



= Notable Construction Period Expectations {as discussed previously):
o Construction Costs and Port Budget:

As we've discussed during numerous meetings, there has been a sequence of unfortunate
delays in this project due primarily to negotiations with the Suguamish Tribe, coordination
with Kitsap County including the regional stormwater treatment potential, and several other
regulatory reviews with very long review periods.

As a result of these delays, the original estimated construction cost estimate [which was
merely an estimate of probable cost range to begin with) is now likely to be lower than
actual bids received due to multiple years of significant inflation in the construction
industry. Proceeding with the approach that has been discussed previously, we will go
ahead and receive bids as soon as everything is ready so the Port knows without guessing
what the actual bid price will be. In an effort to save time after bids are opened, | suggest
the Port revisit the existing budget and contingency options for additional funding ahead of
actually opening bid. Also, as previously discussed, once we know what the bid amount is
we can discuss any overages with RCO to see if there is any possibility of additional
assistance from them. The bid documents will specify that award of the contract is
contingent on the Ports post-bid evaluation of available funding.

< Existing Site Conditions and Unknowns:

As Jim and | have discussed at various points during the process of grant applications,
permitting, and design {most recently discussed again during our site walk on 7-11-24);
there are numerous existing site features and unknown elements associated with the
project. Based on the discussions we’ve had with the Commission during the process to
date, the directed approach was to not expend unnecessary expense upfront studying
unknown elements but to resolve them only if necessary during construction. The basis of
this approach was that if a certain condition exists the Port would need to pay costs
associated with the condition regardless, and it was not desired to pay additional
engineering or field study cost upfront and in addition to the construction costs, One
representative example of this approach relates to the depth the float pilings will be driven
to. To know the pile dapth more precisely ahead of time the Port would need to incur the
cost of marine subsurface borings however, the piles will ultimately be driven to the
reguired structural depth regardless. Instead, we will require the contractor to drive the
piles to a presumptive depth and then pay the added cost to drive deeper only if necessary.

This project site presents numerous similar unknown elements such as the existing shoreline
retaining wall {concrete bulkhead) structural integrity, the existing fixed pier structure, the
potential for contaminated soils and)or groundwater, unknown subsurface conditions in the
upland portion of the site and around or beneath the existing residential structures, ete.

The construction period approach is planned such that these unknowns will be addressed
during construction in a fair and eguitabla way with the selected contractor, which may

U S ———————— e |
SOU_.NMST Page Sof 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 6



necessitate change order costs the Port will incur if the unknown conditions do prove to
present the need for additional work.

o Administration of Construction Activities:

Administration of a construction project of this type is generally most successful when
communication protocols and administrative procedures are well defined ahead of
advertising for bids and as such these protocols and procedures will be included in part 3 of
the contract documents. In addition to other administration items, the Part 3 draft
currently specifies the following general items in greater detail:

* Project related contacts for the Port will be lohn Piccone [or his designee) and Jim
Aho only. John and Jim will therefore correspond with the contractor on a regular
basis during construction and provide the contractor with timely direction as .
construction progresses. This direction will be based on the approved project
budget, including the approved project budget contingency amount, and any other
high-level direction from the board. In an effort to prevent issues associated with
miscommunication, the contractor will be prohibited from receiving direction from
any other persons.

* “Construction observation” will be conducted by John Piccone {or his designee) and
Jim Aho. The purpose of “construction observation” is NOT to direct the contractors
means and methods of doing the work but rather to monitor the project for
apparent compliance with the contract documents and intent of the work. Mo other
persons will be permitted to perform "construction observation” however, ordinary
observation from outside the primary construction limits should not present a
problem provided it is from within safe limits and does not involve project related
communications.

¢  Execution of documents will be the responsibility of Jim Aho based on the approved
budget and any other higher decisions made by the board in advance. Jim will have
the authority to execute change orders if necessary and/or approve design changes
during construction, if within budget, in order to provide the contractor any
necessary timely response.

e Payments associated with the construction process will be made on a regular basis
in accordance with the contract document specifications and therefore will be
reviewed when received by John and Jim and then transmitted to Jennifer Olsen to
issue payment (provided there are no payments exceeding the pre-approved project
budget including approved contingency). Payments to the contractor will generally
be made on a monthly schedule based on the completed progress of work. Monthly
or bi-monthly grant reimbursements are requested and received after the monthly
payments to the contractor is issued.

R S ————————ee s ]
SOMST Page 6 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

Page 7



In addition to these highlights, there are numerous other administrative matters specified in
the contract documents and as mentioned above, all Commissioners will have an
opportunity to review the contract documents prior to advertising for bids to better
understand and approve what is proposed therein.

e Anticipated Schedule;

o Open bids October 16 {or later if necessary and changed by addenda after advertising)

©»  Review bids, Port funding, and pre-award conference information mid to late October.

v Seek Board discussion on approval to award the project; late October to early
November.,

2 Work with the selected contractor to execute construction contract and establish the
construction schedule for the various work items considering allowable in-water work
windows, and wet winter weather considerations for the upland excavation work.
Issue the notice to proceed which will begin the 330 calendar day contract time to
complete all work (unless contract time is extended by change order).

Reports /Unfinished Business
Waterfront Project Comments
Below are some comments made by the public regarding the Port's Waterfront Improvement Project:

e Community Member: Is it customary for the public to attend the bid opening?
Response: Yes, the bid opening is open to the public.

e Community Member: Will the entire Port dock and pier be closed for 330 days (about 11 months) once
construction starts?

® Response: Yes, The Contractor will monitor the closure, and it is likely they will leave their materials and
equipment on site.

e Community Member: Change orders should be announced. Is there a contingency fund budget? Please be
mindful at public meetings how topics are discussed.

lllahee Store Project / PLIA Remediations

Commissioner Aho provided an update on his discussions with Chris Lee, PLIA’s contractor, regarding a target completion
date for the project before the onset of rain, ideally in November. However, this timeline is contingent upon the availability
of contractors, and Commissioner Aho will need to await confirmation on whether an earlier completion is feasible.

Commissioner Hall provided an update on his communications with Dave’s Septic, the party responsible for submitting the
septic plan to the Kitsap County Health District. During their discussion, Commissioner Hall mentioned that the initial invoice
from Dave’s Septic amounted to $1,300. Additionally, there was a supplementary invoice of $225 for the connection permit,
specifically for linking the piping from the septic tank.

Page 8



Commissioner Hall met with electrician at the store property so they could provide an estimate for restoring electricity.
Additionally, he is actively soliciting additional bids from electricians to facilitate the restoration of power to the store
property.

Commissioner Rupert has expressed interest in obtaining a Port credit card and believes that each Commissioner should
have one. In response, the administrator has confirmed that she will arrange for Port credit cards to be issued to both
Commissioner Rupert and Commissioner Hall.

Commissioner Aho will be attending the Brownfield Workshop with the Department of Ecology on September 12, 2024.
Treasurer’s Report as of August 31, 2024,

e General Fund: $94,068.80

e Investments: $294,871.12

e Good Property Management (GPM) Account: $199.00
e Total: $389,138.92

Grant Status

BFP RCO Total: $851,065.00 Amount of RCO paid: $97,262.74 Remaining RCO Funds: $753,802.26
ALEA RCO Total: $500,000.00 Amount of RCO paid: $77,751.31 Remaining RCO Funds: $422,248.69
RCFB RCO Total: $191,000.00 Amount of RCO paid: $0 Remaining RCO Funds: $191,000.00

Public Comment

A community member asked about the grant match percentages. The Administrator will email her with the grant match
percentages.

Reports
Website
Nothing to report.
Properties

e 5560 Oceanview Blvd: Nothing to report.

e 5500 lllahee Road: Nothing to report.

e 5507 lllahee Road / lllahee Store Property: Nothing to report.
¢ lllahee Road lot: Nothing to report.

Dock/Pier

e Commissioner Aho repaired a hole in the dock.
e Commissioner Rupert expressed concerns about the railing issues and will purchase fasteners to attach them.

Page 9



lllahee Days

¢ The Commissioners engaged in extensive discussion about the lessons learned from lllahee Days 2024, addressing
several key topics, including:

® The event saw lower attendance compared to previous years, due to limited outreach beyond Facebook and the
lllahee Store sign. The lllahee Community website, a key communication tool, has been down for months, impacting
event promotion.

* Significant site preparation was required due to long-standing maintenance issues at the Store property, including
overgrown vegetation and debris. An emergency cleanup was necessary just before the event.

e Key lessons learned include the need to restore the lllahee Community website, develop an Operations and
Maintenance (O&M) manual for the Store property, and maintain property boundaries and fences.

New Business

® A special meeting has been scheduled for September 18, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. on Zoom to approve the bid manual for
the Port's Waterfront Improvement Project.

e Alllllahee Port Commissioners are scheduled to attend the Small Ports Seminar on October 24 and 25, 2024, at Lake
Chelan. This seminar, organized by the Washington Public Ports, will provide valuable insights. The Administrator
will handle the registration process for the Commissioners.

® The 2025 preliminary budget requires approval during the Port meeting on October 9, 2024. Subsequently, the final
budget will be adopted and approved at the Port meeting scheduled for November 13, 2024.

e Commissioner Rupert proposed a motion to approve the contract for administrative services between JJAM
Innovations and the Port of lllahee. (Motion by Rupert; second by Hall; all in favor).

e The Commissioners engaged in extensive deliberation regarding whether to continue with the Municipal Research
and Services Center (MRSC) or explore the possibility of establishing their own Small Works Roster. The

Commissioners decided they will bring this topic up with the WPPA (Washington Public Ports Association) at the
Small Ports Seminar.

Page 10



Public Comment

A community member stated that the Port has an obligation to keep the tenant at 5500 lllahee Road informed about the
progress regarding the demolition of the house. Commissioner Rupert will personally engage in a conversation with the
tenant to address her concerns.

Adjourn

At 9:00 PM, the meeting adjourned. (Motion by Rupert; second by Hall; all in favor).
The next regular meeting is scheduled for October 9, 2024, at 6:30 PM via Zoom.
The Kitsap All Ports meeting is scheduled for October 28, 2024, at 6:30 PM at the Port of Brownsville.

Signatures

Commissioner James Aho Commissioner Eric Hall Commissioner Jeffrey Rupert

Page 11



INTERIM VOUCHER APPROVAL

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of llahee, Kitsap County, Wash ingtan
do hereby certify that the merchandise andior services hereinafter specified have been receved

1

and that the vouchers listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $46,564.98
and from the General Fund, this 11TH  day of September 2024
( /7
,‘ ‘,.J '." I
SRSSEAY —{=
Porludito’, Part Cbmw‘ms%ner
F-'on Cnmxﬂnssmner
| Number Name Amount

5227 [ERIC L Hall B H 384.00]
5223  |JAMES AHD ! 354,00

5224 |JEFFREY & RUPERT | 384.00
5225 |BANK OF AMERICA % 32.03
3226  (CASCALDE NATURAL GAS % _13.00
5227 |HONEY BUCKET | 135.50
5228 |PORT OF SILVERDALE ’ 670.96
5228 |POSTMASTER o 1 442.00
5230 IPUGET SOUND ENERGY 30.58

| 5231 WASTE MANAGEMEMNT 24 .57
5232 | SOUNDWEST ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 42, 763.85
9233 |DAVES SEPTIC SERVICES, INC 1,300.00

S S—




MINUTES OF ILLAHEE PORT SPECIAL MEETING ON September 18, 2024

Commissioner Aho called the meeting to order at 5:00PM via ZOOM. Also, in
attendance were Commissioner Hall; Commissioner Rupert; Administrator Jennifer
Olson; John Piccone and Roy Barton.

« To Approve the Project Bid Manuel for the Ports Waterfront Access Project
Commissioners and John Piccone (SoundWest Engineering) engaged in
extensive dialogue regarding the Port of lllahee’s Waterfront Improvement
Project bid manual.

o Key discussion points:

o Interpretation of reasonable delays related to architectural resource
findings.

o Considerations for cultural resources.

o Water district work cost estimate: Approximately $18,000-19,000 (likely
closer to $11,000).

o Soil suitability uncertainty addressed through built-in contingencies.

Commissioner Rupert made a motion to approve the bid Manuel for the Port of lllahee’s
Waterfront Access Project. (motion by Rupert; second by Hall; unanimous).

Digital Signature Approval for Bid Project Manual Certification Page

During the meeting, John Piccone requested approval to include Commissioner Aho’s
digital signature on the certification page of the bid project manual. Commissioner Aho
expressed agreement with this proposal. Subsequently, Mr. Piccone sought input from
Commissioner Hall and Commissioner Rupert, both of whom also concurred, affirming
the use of digital signatures.

John Piccone will advertise bids in both the Kitsap Sun and the Daily Journal of
Commerce.

ADJOURN - The meeting adjourned at 5:55PM (motion by Rupert; second by Hall;
unanimous).

Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner



INTERIM VOUCHER APPROVAL

We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of lllahee, Kitsap County, Washington
do hereby certify that the merchandise and/or services hereinafter specified have been received
and that the vouchers listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $55,437.71

and from the General Fund, this 9TH day of October 2024

Port Auditor Port Commissioner

Port Commissioner

Number Name Amount
5234 |ERIC L. Hall 384.00
5235 |JAMES AHO 384.00
5236 |JEFFREY S. RUPERT 384.00
5237 |JJAM INNOVATIONS, LLC 2,895.24
5238 |SOUNDWEST ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 46,966.40
5239 |HONEY BUCKET 135.50
5240 |DAVE'S SEPTIC SERVICES, INC. 225.00
5241 NORTH PERRY AVENUE WATER DISTRICT 63.64
5242 |CASCADE NATURAL GAS 13.00
5243 |WASTE MANAGEMENT 24.57
5244 |DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 688.50
5245 |BANK OF AMERICA 698.04
5246 |JEFFREY S. RUPERT 1,296.96
5247 |WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 1,278.86




Projects Status Summary Memorandum
W

Date: September 11, 2024

To: Port of lllahee Board of Commissioners

From: John Piccone, P.E., Soundwest Engineering Assoc.
Subject: Projects Status Summary

Waterfront Improvement Project

e Project Manual Update
o Areview copy of the complete project manual was sent to all Commissioners on 9-10-24
for Port review and approval. My understanding is that we will be having a special
meeting next week Wednesday (9-18-24) to discuss any questions and potentially
approve proceeding with advertising and opening bids if reviews are complete.
o During the next week I will also be reviewing the manual once more in the event | see
any very minor edits or format errors.

o All Commissioners are urged to take as much time as necessary to review the manual;
there is a lot there and you may wish to have the Port’s legal counsel review as well
since this is new to the Port. In terms of overall construction progress and completion
of the work | don’t anticipate this review period will have any meaningful impact on
completion of the project due to wet season constraints and permissible in-water work
windows.

e Summary of Bidding Proceedure

o There are numerous required procedures for a public port entity when seeking bids on a
project of this size. Most everything is well laid out and can be reviewed in Part 1 of the
bid manual. A few important highlights to summarize are as follows:

o Please do not share or publicly distribute the review manual or the final manual that
goes out to bid. This is important to ensure all potential bidders receive the same
information as well as any addenda updates as the bid period proceeds. The ONLY thing
that can be shared (after the first advertisement goes out) is the advertisement page of
the manual. Likewise, be cautious in your discussions and what you say about the
project, finances, etc. during meetings and when talking with others; while I’'m not
aware of any specific regulation in this regard just be aware of the information you put
out and how it might affect the bid results and/or how a Contractor might choose to
proceed developing their bid strategy.

o All bidders will request a copy of the manual and at that time they will be placed on the
plan holders list. We maintain this list of contacts for the purpose of communicating the
same information to all potential bidders. Soundwest will administer the plan holders
list and distribution of bid manuals to all interested parties according to standard
practice for Port projects like this one.

T
$OWT Page 1 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES



Projects Status Summary Memorandum

o Currently, the first advertisement is scheduled on September 19, then again on Sept. 26
and Oct. 2". There will be a mandatory pre-bid meeting on Oct. 3, where all
interested plan holders meet on site to inspect the site and ask questions; this meeting
may only be attended by registered plan holders (no members of the public, vendors,
etc.). The entire residential house will need to be available for inspection on this day
and I'll work with Jim to arrange that. Then, the public bid opening is currently
scheduled for Oct. 16. These dates can always be adjusted if needed for any reason
(which can even be done by addenda after the first advertisement). We will advertise in
the Kitsap Sun as required and in the DIC; it’s been my experience that most all bidders
will become aware of the project through the DJC. | will work with Jenny on how the
Port wishes to make payment for the advertisements.

e Bid Opening

o The bid opening will be attended by Jim and I (it is not typically a Commission or public
meeting). At the appointed time we will receive all bids and open them in front of each
contractor who submitted a bid. Although the “apparent low bidder” will be
announced, no official award of the project will take place at the bid opening.

e Leading up to Award of the Project

o Aswe’ve discussed on several occasions, the bids are expected to be higher than
originally estimated when we submitted grants due to inflation during the numerous
delays. Once bids are opened the Port will want to schedule a special meeting, likely
with executive session, and discuss available budget and bid price. The bid manual
clearly states that award of the project is contingent on the Ports post-bid evaluation of
funding. This funding evaluation should happen as quickly as possible after the bid
opening.

o Additionally, prior to official award, Jim and I will hold a pre-award meeting with the
apparent low bidder for the purpose of reviewing the bid in detail and discussing the
Contractors planned approach to Construction as well as numerous contingency related
items. As we’ve also discussed in the past, there are several unknowns associated with
the work that may impact final construction cost and although we will not have these
items determined during the pre-award meeting, | do believe it’s beneficial to the Port
and Contractor to discuss some of these items.

o After funding is evaluated and all pre-award discussion meets the Ports satisfaction, we
will issue a notice of award and the Contractor will proceed to submit the various bonds
and paperwork necessary to execute the construction contract.

s
$OWST Page 2 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES



Projects Status Summary Memorandum
bl el e e T r—

e For Guidance As You Review the Project Manual:

o Part 1 - Bidding Requirements

Part 1 focuses on the numerous required forms and information the contractor must
submit along with their bid price for the work. The majority of these items are required
by state law for public agencies bidding work. This part of the bid manual includes the
actual proposal sheets where the contractors will list their pricing for each work
component as well as numerous other items that will also be submitted at the time of
bid opening.

= Advertisement for Bids

=  Bidder’'s Checklist

=  Proposal

= Required Proposal Forms

= Non-Collusion Declaration

=  Bid Deposit

= Statement of Proposed Subcontractors

®  Contractor Certification Wage Law Compliance — Responsibility Criteria

* Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Criteria The supplemental bidder
responsibility section includes several poges of requirements the contractor must
submit to demonstrate they are well qualified for the work. Procedures for
rejecting the low bid contractor based on inadequate qualifications is prescribed
by state law and this section serves to increase the Ports decision making ability
in this regard.

o Part 2 - Contract Forms

Part 2 includes all the necessary contract forms for execution once the project is
awarded to the successful bidder. The primary contract for construction is only a couple
poges but it clarifies that all the components of the bid manual, including all referenced
manuals, also comprise the contract for construction.

= Contract for Construction
= Required Contract Forms
=  Payment Bond
=  Performance Bond
= Selection of Retainage Option
= Prevailing Wage Requirements
o Part 3 — Special Conditions of the Contract

Part 3 includes numerous provisions and requirements for completing the work that are
specific to this project. It includes such items as communication protocols, project
reloted contacts, contractors’ responsibilities reloted to regulatory compliance, what
submittals are required before performing the work, certain surveying and utility locate
requirements, hours and days work can be done and how bad weather days will be

Page 3 of 7

A Ll it
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES



Projects Status Summary Memorandum

e e T —

accounted for, construction testing, etc. This section also includes the very important
section on how the work will be measured and paid for relative to the bid price received
in the proposal,

o Part 4 — Technical Specifications

Technical specifications are exactly what they sound like; all the very specific details
related to materials and execution necessary for the installation of each item. On this
project we will have two types of technical specifications; “performance specifications”
where we only dictate the performance-based outcome of the work item, and
“prescriptive specifications” where we detail more exactly what material to use and how
it will be installed and tested. For example, on this project the contractor will have the
latitude to shop around for different types of retaining wall blocks that meet basic
guidelines (performance) but the type of asphalt will be exactly specified {prescriptive).

o Part 5 — Amendments to the Standard Specifications )

In addition to the provisions and specifications of part 3 and 4; part 5 incorporates by
reference the WSDOT standard specifications for municipal work. This is a
comprehensive document in and of itself and we incorporate it by reference to prevent
having to reiterate many of the more standord specifications that generally apply to all
projects of this type. However, it is sometimes necessary to make minor amendments to
these so that they apply to the Port of lilahee in this case instead of WSDOT, The
majority of those amendments are actually made by WSDOT periodically as a courtesy to
Washington State municipalities and public agencies.

o Part 6 — Drawings
The drawings are exactly what you’d expect and are either included in g single bound
document with the rest of the manual or bound separately and included by reference.

o Part 7 — Appendices (Other Reference Documents Available by Request)

The appendix is also a very important part of the bid manual as it includes such items as
the project specific permits and various reports (like the contaminated material
management plan the Commissioners authorized SLR to complete). By incorporating
these items into the appendix, the information becomes part of the bid manual, and the
contractor is responsible for being award of the information ahead of submitting bids.

® Appendix A: Miscellaneous Forms & Information related to the Work
=  Appendix B: Special Reports
= Appendix C: Permits Obtained by the Port

S A e T T R
& OMS T Page 4 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOC?A:;'ES



Projects Status Summary Memorandum
i e e R s e R e R

¢ Notable Construction Period Expectations (as discussed previously):
o Construction Costs and Port Budget:

As we've discussed during numerous meetings, there has been a sequence of unfortunate
delays in this project due primarily to negotiations with the Suquamish Tribe, coordination
with Kitsap County including the regional stormwater treatment potential, and several other
regulatory reviews with very long review periods.

As a result of these delays, the original estimated construction cost estimate (which was
merely an estimate of probable cost range to begin with) is now likely to be lower than
actual bids received due to multiple years of significant inflation in the construction
industry. Proceeding with the approach that has been discussed previously, we will go
ahead and receive bids as soon as everything is ready so the Port knows without guessing
what the actual bid price will be. In an effort to save time after bids are opened, | suggest
the Port revisit the existing budget and contingency options for additional funding ahead of
actually opening bid. Also, as previously discussed, once we know what the bid amount is
we can discuss any overages with RCO to see if there is any possibility of additional
assistance from them. The bid documents will specify that award of the contract is
contingent on the Ports post-bid evaluation of available funding.

o Existing Site Conditions and Unknowns:

As Jim and | have discussed at various points during the process of grant applications,
permitting, and design (most recently discussed again during our site walk on 7-11-24);
there are numerous existing site features and unknown elements associated with the
project. Based on the discussions we’ve had with the Commission during the process to
date, the directed approach was to not expend unnecessary expense upfront studying
unknown elements but to resolve them only if necessary during construction. The basis of
this approach was that if a certain condition exists the Port would need to pay costs
associated with the condition regardless, and it was not desired to pay additional
engineering or field study cost upfront and in addition to the construction costs. One
representative example of this approach relates to the depth the float pilings will be driven
to. To know the pile depth more precisely ahead of time the Port would need to incur the
cost of marine subsurface borings however, the piles will ultimately be driven to the
required structural depth regardless. Instead, we will require the contractor to drive the
piles to a presumptive depth and then pay the added cost to drive deeper only if necessary.

This project site presents numerous similar unknown elements such as the existing shoreline
retaining wall (concrete bulkhead) structural integrity, the existing fixed pier structure, the
potential for contaminated soils and/or groundwater, unknown subsurface conditions in the
upland portion of the site and around or beneath the existing residential structures, etc.

The construction period approach is planned such that these unknowns will be addressed
during construction in a fair and equitable way with the selected contractor, which may

e T e e S S,
S GWST Page 5 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOC]#E‘ES



Projects Status Summary Memorandum

W

necessitate change order costs the Port will incur if the unknown conditions do prove to
present the need for additional work.

o Administration of Construction Activities:

Administration of a construction project of this type is generally most successful when
communication protocols and administrative procedures are well defined ahead of
advertising for bids and as such these protocols and procedures will be included in part 3 of
the contract documents. In addition to other administration items, the Part 3 draft
currently specifies the following general items in greater detail:

® Project related contacts for the Port will be John Piccone (or his designee) and Jim
Aho only. John and Jim will therefore correspond with the contractor on a regular
basis during construction and provide the contractor with timely direction as
construction progresses. This direction will be based on the approved project
budget, including the approved project budget contingency amount, and any other
high-level direction from the board. In an effort to prevent issues associated with
miscommunication, the contractor will be prohibited from receiving direction from
any other persons.

e “Construction observation” will be conducted by John Piccone (or his designee) and
Jim Aho. The purpose of “construction observation” is NOT to direct the contractors
means and methods of doing the work but rather to monitor the project for
apparent compliance with the contract documents and intent of the work. No other
persons will be permitted to perform “construction observation” however, ordinary
observation from outside the primary construction limits should not present a
problem provided it is from within safe limits and does not involve project related
communications.

e Execution of documents will be the responsibility of Jim Aho based on the approved
budget and any other higher decisions made by the board in advance. Jim will have
the authority to execute change orders if necessary and/or approve design changes
during construction, if within budget, in order to provide the contractor any
necessary timely response.

* Payments associated with the construction process will be made on a regular basis
in accordance with the contract document specifications and therefore will be
reviewed when received by John and Jim and then transmitted to Jennifer Olsen to
issue payment (provided there are no payments exceeding the pre-approved project
budget including approved contingency). Payments to the contractor will generally
be made on a monthly schedule based on the completed progress of work. Monthly
or bi-monthly grant reimbursements are requested and received after the monthly
payments to the contractor is issued.

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES

T T S
SOWT Page 6 of 7



Projects Status Summary Memorandum

e —

In addition to these highlights, there are numerous other administrative matters specified in
the contract documents and as mentioned above, all Commissioners will have an
opportunity to review the contract documents prior to advertising for bids to better
understand and approve what is proposed therein.

e Anticipated Schedule;
o Open bids October 16 (or later if necessary and changed by addenda after advertising)
o Review bids, Port funding, and pre-award conference information mid to late October.
o Seek Board discussion on approval to award the project; late October to early
November.
o Work with the selected contractor to execute construction contract and establish the

construction schedule for the various work items considering allowable in-water work
windows, and wet winter weather considerations for the upland excavation work.

o Issue the notice to proceed which will begin the 330 calendar day contract time to
complete all work (unless contract time is extended by change order).

B R e
$OWT Page 7 of 7

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES



NE ‘ US ESTIMATE

ELECTRIC

1415 Lumsden Rd Estimate # 741-1
Port Orchard, WA 98367, USA Date Fri Sep 13 2024

office@nexuselectric.co Total 2260.44
(360) 443-6995 :

Prepared For: For Service At:

Port of llahee 5507 lllahee Road NE

Eric Hall Bremerton, Washington 98311

5507 lllahee Road NE Job Type: Estimate o

Bremerton, Washington 98311 Port of lltahee restoring/refurbishing the old store

and would like an estimate.

(724) 610-4028
illaheeportone@gmail.com

Description -

job Description/Scope of Work

Ensure service is complete and to code o re-establish
utility power. Safe off and remove any hazards in the
building. Ensure existing lugs and bussing are ciean and
servicable.

Provide outlet, light and switch for L&!
inspection/approval to re-establish power.

L&l permlt ‘Nexus w:i% cohtact L&l and obtdm the

necessary. permit fo r wzjrk being completed, We will

ensure the work is. mspected and approved Permit and
adrmin fees included.

!nspection of service for re-power -

Page 1 of 3



PSE Disconnect/Reconnect

Service fee of approx $500.00 will be required to be
direct paid with PSE. Nexus will contact PSE to advise of
the reconnect. You will be required to contact PSE to
agree to the service and pay the fee at that time.

Bremerton Service Fee

Trip/Service: fee/day .

Sub total $2070.00
Tax Rate 9.200%

License # NEXUSEI782PR

Terms:

This estimate is not guaranteed. The price named in the estimate is an approximation of the project
requirements as described by the client, The actual cost may change after all of the project elements have
been negotiated and finalized. The client will be informed of any changes in cost in advance and will be
required to acknowledge these fees prior to work commencing. This estimate is valid for 30 calendar days.
Pricing is subject to change due to manufacturing price increases. Nexus Electric is not resgonsible for
any drywall work or painting.

Service Terms:
By accepting the terms of this estimate, Nexus Electric will perform the services as described in this
document. Any additional work not covered in this estimate will incur additional charges.

Change Terms:

Any changes requested by the client to quantities, specifications, schedule, or other aspects of the services
described in this estimate are not binding unless accepted by Nexus Flectric in writing. Any requested
changes may lead to additional charges, which the client agrees to pay when requesting and approving
them.

Page 2 of 3



Payment:

Upfront deposits may be due based on the size of the project, we will advise you if this is required.
Acceptable methods of payment include bank check, personal check or credit card. There are additional fees
for credit card transactions. Financing is available, please advise if you would like information pertaining to
financing your project. Late payments are subject to a late charge. Late charges will be applied every 30
days an invoice remains unpaid.

Tax Terms:
The client is responsible for all applicable federal, state, and local taxes levied on the transaction as

described in this estimate. No tax exemptions will be recognized unless a valid tax exemptlion certificate is
provided.

Thank You For Your Business

Page 3 of 3



T
i

bird electric corp CUSTOMER ESTIMATE

22930 Stotlemeyer Rd NE | Date | 01/26/24

|Estmator  [Lucas G

Poulsbo WA 98370

PH: 360-779-2112 |

| l

FX: 360-779-2069 .

SIGN & RETURN TO ACCEPT BID
T

| [

NAME & MAILING ADDRESS

~JOB SITE LOCATION

Port of lilahee lllahee Foods

5507 lllahee Rd NE

Bremerton, WA 98311

timelines set forth shall be extended due to delays beyond Bird Electric's control. The property owner shall carry fire,

DESCRIPTION TOTAL
Scope of work
Code compliant service for energization
PSE application 150.00
Permit 200.00
Grounding 850.00
All service conductors removed from lugs, cleaned up, deox, landed 750.00
Panel circuits removed that are not safe for energization 370.00
Note: Breaker is existing in panel
ALL CHANGE ORDERS MUST BE APPROVED PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK

PAYMENTS TO BE MADE AS FOLLOWS: 100% upon completion
Per RCW 60.04 Non-payment may result in a lien against property or properties for work and/or material supplied

ESTIMATES ARE HONORED FOR THIRTY DAYS FROM DATE OF ESTIMATE | $ 2,320.00
All material is guarangteed to be as specified. All work will be completed in a workmanlike Sales Tax | 9.20% 213.44
manner according to standard practices. Any alteration.deviation from the above specifications
involving extra costs will become an extra charge over and above this estimate. Any OTA $ 2,533.44

earthquake, and other usual and reasonable insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Worker's Compensation Insurance.

| 1 {
1] |

E |

Acceptance of Proposal: The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are

authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined. Any payment not made on the time line set forth above shall

bear interest at 1% per month from the due date until paid in full. If this contract is turned over to an attorney for collection, the purchaser

of these services agrees to pay all court costs and attorney's fees in addition to other amounts owed I?ereunder.

Customer's Signature ] | |

Date |




Peninsula Electric Corp.

PO Box 1401 / 28205 State Highway 3 NE
Poulsbo, WA 98370-7135

+13606971416
office@peninsulaelectric.com

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE # 1965

Hall, Eric Hall, Eric DATE 09/20/2024
5507 lllahee Road 5507 lllahee Road

Bremerton, WA 98311 Bremerton, WA 98311

PHONE NUMBER EMAIL

724-610-4028 illaheeportone@gmail.com

Total labor and materials to complete the following scope of 1 2,860.00 2,860.00T
work:

Bring current service up to code, get inspection with Labor

and Industries, once service is inspected and sticker is on

the panel you can call PSE to get it energized

Demo all un used conduits and loose wire cuts

Materials to complete the above: 1 339.12 339.12T
Metal boxes

MC wire

Ground rods, clamps

Bare copper wires

LED pull chain
L&! permit for electrical work 1 168.00 168.00T
SUBTOTAL 3,367.12
TAX 309.77
TOTAL
$3,676.89
Accepted By Accepted Date B

This estimate is for completing the job as described above and is valid for 14 days. Itis based on our evaluation and does not include price
increases or additional labor and materials which may be required should unforeseen problems or adverse conditions arise. By signing below,
you authorize Peninsula Electric Corp. to do the work as specified. License # PENINEC950JD peninsulaelectric.com



Correspondence between neighbor and Commissioner Aho

Should the Port have 5507 lllahee Road Surveyed?

Your people are cutting things on my property and Jesse's. The rocks are the boundary
line and above the wall is not yours. | wentdown and they cut some laurel, which is fine.
Butthey left huge bunches above. | told them to pull it out and showed told them it was
on my side. You are making it so much worse right now for us and not talking to us is
really not making us happy.
We talked about this Jim

Please meet us to discuss whatis the ports and what is ours and let us know when
you are having people cut things down.

I am getting material for my fence and then | won't care. And you can putin your own
posts and not hook to mine.

Robin Wilcox

Robin,

| agree that we need to meet and determine where the property lines are.

What we were doing on Saturday was primarily to clean up the west side along
the fence line where the trees and shrubs were overhanging the roof and the path
that was almost nonexistent.

We need to better understand your concerns.

Give me a call when you are available to meet.

Jim Aho












The Port of lllahee

88712 - GENERAL FUND, Period Ending 09/30/2024
RECONCILIATION REPORT '
Reconciled on: 10/07/2024

Reconciled by:

Any changes made to transactions after this date aren't included in this report.

Summary usD
Statement beginning balance 91,598.80
Checks and payments cleared (13) -47,502.85
Deposits and other credits cleared (5) 9,810.07
Statement ending balance, 53,906.02
Register balance as of 09/30/2024, 53,906.02
Details

Checks and payments cleared (13)

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD)
09/11/2024 Check 5233 DAVE'S SEPTIC SERVICES, ... -1,300.00
09/11/2024 Check 5222 ERIC L. Hall -384.00
09/11/2024 Check 5223 JAMES AHO -384.00
09/11/2024 Check 5224 JEFFREY S. RUPERT -384.00
09/11/2024 Check 5225 BANK OF AMERICA -32.03
09/11/2024 Check 5226 CASCADE NATURAL GAS -13.00
09/11/2024 Check 5227 HONEY BUCKET -135.50
09/11/2024 Check 5228 PORT OF SILVERDALE -670.96
09/11/2024 Check 5229 POSTMASTER -442.00
09/11/2024 Check 5230 PUGET SOUND ENERGY -30.98
09/11/2024 Check 5231 WASTE MANAGEMENT -24.57
09/11/2024 Check 5232 SOUNDWEST ENGINEERIN... -42,763.95
09/30/2024 Transfer -937.86
Total -47,502.85
Deposits and other credits cleared (5)

DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD) ..
08/27/2024 Transfer 2,470.00
09/30/2024 Transfer 2,470.00
09/30/2024 Deposit 850.00
09/30/2024 Deposit 3,082.21
09/30/2024 Deposit _ 937.86
Total 9,810.07




TREAS RPT - Summary Cash Report - Cash
Beginning Balance Date 1/1/2024

Treasurer's Summary Report

For 2024 - Sep
Fund FD00712 Portllllahee General

Ledger A Revente or Spend Category  Beginning Balance ~ Debit =~ Credit Month-to-Date Year-to-Date

Cash

Beginning Cash Balance 95,864.13

1182:Investments -7,016.14 0.00 937.86 -937.86 -7,954.00

Purchased

3100:Taxes 3110.10 - Real and Personal 51,721.64 3,082.21 0.00 3,082.21 54,803.85

Property Taxes

3100:Taxes 3170.20 - Leasehold Excise Tax 45.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.95

3600: Miscellaneous 3610.11 - Investment Interest 7,016.14 937.86 0.00 937.86 7,954.00

Revenues

3600:Miscellaneous 3610.40 - Other Interest 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03

Revenues

3800:Other Increases in 3860 - Agency Deposits 42,892.72 3,320.00 0.00 3,320.00 46,212.72

Fund Resources

5890:Custodial Activities 5890.40 - Warrants Issued -89,562.27 0.00 46,564.99 -46,564.99 -136,127.26

6900: Transfers Out 6971.88713 - Transfers Out -6,893.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 -6,893.40
-1,795.33 7,340.07 47,502.85 -40,162.78 53,906.02

Total Cash



The Port of lilahee

INVESTMENT POOL, Period Ending 09/30/2024

RECONCILIATION REPORT
Reconciled on: 10/07/2024

Reconciled by:

Any changes made to transactions after this date aren't included in this report.

Summary

usD
Statement beginning balance 294,871.12
Checks and payments cleared (0) 0.00
Deposits and other credits cleared (1) 937.86
Statement ending balance, 295,808.98
Register balance as of 09/30/2024 295,808.98
Details
Deposits and other credits cleared (1)
DATE TYPE REF NO. PAYEE AMOUNT (USD) *
09/30/2024 Transfer 937.86
Total 937.86




PORT OF ILLAHEE
2025 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

TOTAL ESTIMATED BEGINNING BALANCE
REVENUES:
670.00 NonRevenues - Loan Contingency for Improvement Projects
693.00 Operating Grants Reimbursement ALEA & BFP (2059 & 2038)
695.00 Real Property Rentals
699.10 Investment Interest
699.20 Property Tax
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES:
TOTAL ESTIMATED FUNDS AVAILABLE:
EXPENDITURES:
721.00 MARINA OPERATING
721.80 Utilities
721.90 Other
723.00 MARINA MAINTENANCE
723.30 Outside Services
723.40 Supplics
761.00 PROPERTY LEASE/RENTAL MANAGEMENT
761.30 Outside Servies: Ocean View
763.00 PROPERTY LEASE/RENTAL/STORE/ MAINTENANCE
763.40 Supplies
763.60 Facility Maintenance
763.70 General and Administrative
763.80 Utilities
763.90 Other: LEASEHOLD/EXCISE TAX
77100 DEBT REDEMPTION
771.50 Other: Note/Contracts
773.00 FIXED ASSET DISBURSEMENT
773.50 Property Improvements: 3307 ILLAHEE ROAD
773.90 Other: Property Improvements
774.00 WATERFRONT FACILITIES
774.40 Watertront Access Improvements: Upland Work
774.40 Waterfront Access Improvements: Marina work
774.50 Waterfront Acess Improvements:Piling Replacernnt
774.90 Watertront Acess Improvements: other
780.00 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
781.10 Commissioner compensation
781.20 Commissioner reimbursement
781.30 Outside services: Legal, Engineering on-call.ete.
781.30 Outside services: Admin Contract
781.40 Supplies
781.70 G&A Operations: Insurance, Ete.
789.10 Economic development
790.00 NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
799.91 Interest Expense: BONDS
799.92 Election Expense
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES:
TOTAL ESTIMATED ENDING BALANCE:

DETAIL

700.000.00
1.338.052.00
29.640.00

8.400.00
99.429.00

FOTALS
398.601.77

3.000.00
500.00

.500.00
.000.00

L000.00

‘sl

300.00
.500.00
500,00
2.000.00
4,000.00

—_—

30.000.00

150.000.00
5.000.00

672.770.00
1.000.274.00
300.078.00
75.000.00

12.800.00
1.500.00
30,000.00
20.000.00
200.00
30,025.00
3.000.00

10.000.00

(2,560.147.00)

14,035.77

Commissioner Jim Aho Commissioner Eric Hall Commissioner Jeffrey Rupert




